ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED
DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX

FEB 0 9 2000

LENNARD LAPOINT JENKINS,)	CLERK, SUPREME COURT
Petitioner,)	
VS.)	DCA CASE NO. 5D99-341
	j	Supreme Court Case No. SCOO - 310
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	<u> </u>
Respondent.)))	

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

S.C. VAN VOORHEES ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 109503 112 Orange Avenue Daytona Beach, FL 32114 (904) 252-3367

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In November of 1997 the defendant snatched a purse from the possession of a woman pedestrian by reaching out from the window of a passing car and grabbing the strap of the purse. (R 41)¹ The car was being driven by the defendant's girlfriend. (TR 62) It was proceeding slowly past the woman in a parking lot when the defendant grabbed the purse. (TR 33) The car nudged the woman's hip as it passed, but the impact did not knock her down and caused no permanent injury to her hip. (TR 33, 48) The effect of the defendant's yank on the purse as the car passed was sufficient to pull the woman off her feet. (TR 34)

¹References to the record of documents filed with the Clerk of Court are cited herein as (R); those to the transcript of the trial as (TR); those to the supplement to the trial transcript, as (TRS); those to the transcript of jury selection, (JS); those to the transcript of the hearing on the motion for JOA and new trial, (HT); and those to the transcript of the sentencing hearing, (ST)

The fall caused contusions to the woman's knees and elbows, and the fracture of a bone in the woman's upper arm. (TR 36)

The defendant's girlfriend then drove the car off, but it was stopped by the police and the defendant was arrested.

The state filed an information charging the defendant with one count of principal to armed robbery with a weapon, to wit: a motor vehicle; a second count of principal to aggravated battery by great bodily harm; and a third count of principal to aggravated battery with a deadly weapon, to wit: a motor vehicle. (R 50, 51)

Motions for judgement of acquittal were made on the ground that the car did not legally qualify as a weapon under the facts of the case. (R 82-86, TR 84-100, 129-131) The position taken by the state in opposition to the defendant's motions was to argue that the defendant had intentionally used the forward impetus of the car to assist in pulling the victim off her feet during the actual purse snatch itself, thus using the car as a weapon. (TR 88-90)

The jury returned verdicts of guilty as charged on all counts. A post-verdict motion for judgement of acquittal and new trial was filed, (R 82-86), and denied after being argued to the court at a post-trial hearing. (R 140, MT 1-15)

A sentence of two concurrent 20-year sentences: one for the armed-robbery, and one for the principal to aggravated battery count was imposed on February 3, 1999. (R 38) A notice of appeal was filed on February 4, 1999. (R 155), and the case was appealed to the 5th DCA.

On December 3, 1999 the 5th DCA affirmed the trial court, finding that "We agree with the lower court that the evidence was sufficient for a jury to find that the automobile was used as a weapon."

A motion for rehearing En Banc was filed on December 14, 1999, and denied on January 14, 2000.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case conflicts with the previous decision of The Florida Supreme Court in State v. Houck, 625 So.2d 359 (Fla. 1995). This conflict confers discretionary jurisdiction on the Florida Supreme Court in conformity with Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

In its decision in the instant case, the 5th DCA wrote:

"We agree with the lower court that the evidence was sufficient for a jury to find that the automobile was used as a weapon"

This holding was in express and direct conflict with the ruling of the Florida Supreme Court in State v. Houck, 625 So.2d 359 (Fla. 1995), wherein Justice Wells used the following language:

"... it is for the court to determine whether what is used in the commission of a felony is a weapon within the meaning of the statute." State v. Houck, 625 So.2d 359 (Fla. 1995)

Justice Wells was affirming the rationale of an earlier 5th DCA decision in Houck v. State, 634 So.2d 180 (5th DCA. 1994) as follows:

"...the original panel was in error in deeming the issue of whether a paved surface is a weapon to be one of fact. It is not. It is a question for the court to determine as a matter of law. The failure of the statute to broadly define the term "weapon" cannot be cured by jury speculation." Houck v. State, 634 So.2d 180 (5th DCA. 1994)

Hence, the ruling of the 5th DCA in the instant case is in direct conflict with the Florida Supreme Court decision of <u>State v. Houck</u>, 625 So.2d 359 (Fla. 1995)

The conflict inheres in the fact that in the instant case the 5th DCA has ruled that the jury is to decide as a matter of fact whether an item used in a crime should be considered a weapon within the meaning of a statute, while the Florida Supreme Court has previously ruled that this is a decision to made by the <u>court</u> as a matter of law.

CONCLUSION

BASED UPON the argument and authorities contained herein, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Honorable Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant review of the decision entered by the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case.