# ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

FILED DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX

MAR 0 1 2000

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

LENNARD LAPOINT JENKINS,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO.: SC00-310

STATE OF FLORIDA,

District Court case no.:

5D99-341

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

KELLIE A. NIELAN ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR #618550

WESLEY HEIDT
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #773026
444 Seabreeze Blvd.
Fifth Floor
Daytona Beach, FL 32118
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

##

#### STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

In addition to the facts provided by the Petitioner, the State offers the following relevant information (all of which is specifically set out in the majority opinion of the district court):

1. The victim testified that after being hit by the car:

The car began to accelerate and I was still with my right hand trying to hold the strap (of her purse) that I was clinging to. As the car accelerated, I started to lose ground, and that's when I went down. I fell. I was dragged along the asphalt....

(TR 34). When asked how far she was dragged, the victim responded

I don't honestly remember how long I was being dragged, but it seemed like forever at the time. But once I felt the actual burning and ripping of my skin, I just gave up.

(TR 36).

2. The majority opinion also noted in response to the defense's argument that the car was simply a conveyance and was not used as a weapon:

The notion that the evidence at trial does no more than show that the vehicle was used as transportation to and from the site of the purse snatching ignores the victim's description of the events. At the very least, it is a jury question whether the automobile was used as a weapon.

Jenkins v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D2693 (Fla. 5th DCA December 3, 1999).

## CERTIFICATE OF FONT AND TYPE SIZE

The undersigned counsel certifies that this brief was typed using 12 point Courier New, a font that is not proportionately spaced.

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should decline to accept jurisdiction in this case. The Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that the decision of the court below conflicts with any decision of this Court or the other district courts.

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT OF LAW

SINCE THE DECISION BY THE DISTRICT COURT IN THE INSTANT CASE DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH ANY OTHER CASE, JURISDICTION SHOULD NOT BE ACCEPTED.

This Court has jurisdiction to review the decision of a district court when that decision "expressly and directly conflicts" with a decision of either this Court or of another district court. Art. V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. This Court has repeatedly held that such conflict must be express and direct, that is, "it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). The Petitioner in this case has failed to show such a conflict.

In his jurisdictional brief, the Petitioner submits that the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this case is somehow in direct conflict with the case of <u>Houck v. State</u>, 652 So. 2d 359 (Fla. 1995). Interestingly, review of the appellate opinion shows that <u>Houck</u> was not even cited by the majority opinion.

The issue presented to the appellate court by the Petitioner was whether the trial court erred by failing to grant the defense's motion for judgment of acquittal. Consistent with case law from this Court and all the other district courts, the majority's decision found that there was sufficient evidence to support the jury's verdict. The evidence showed that the moving car hit the

victim, the car accelerated away when she resisted the robbery, and the car dragged her down and across the asphalt. The moving car hitting her and dragging her increased her fear and her injuries, and the evidence clearly showed that it was used as a weapon to assist the Petitioner in his robbery.

For this Court to have jurisdiction, any case conflict should be within the majority's opinion<sup>1</sup>. Since no such conflict exists in this case, jurisdiction should not be granted.

¹The majority notes in its opinion that the dissent does discuss a case from the First District Court of Appeal (<u>Jackson v. State</u>, 662 So. 2d 1369 (Fla. 1st DCA 1995)); however, the majority also points out that the issue addressed by the dissent was not even raised on appeal. Surely, a dissenting opinion addressing an issue not even raised on appeal by the defense does not create conflict which is "within the four corners of the majority decision."

victim, the car accelerated away when she resisted the robbery, and the car dragged her down and across the asphalt. The moving car hitting her and dragging her increased her fear and her injuries, and the evidence clearly showed that it was used as a weapon to assist the Petitioner in his robbery.

For this Court to have jurisdiction, any case conflict should be within the majority's opinion<sup>1</sup>. Since no such conflict exists in this case, jurisdiction should not be granted.

¹The majority opinion notes in its opinion that the dissent does discuss a case from the First District Court of Appeal (Jackson v. State, 662 So. 2d 1369 (Fla. 1st DCA 1995)); however, the majority also points out that the issue addressed by the dissent was not even raised on appeal. Surely, a dissenting opinion addressing an issue not even raised on appeal by the defense does not create conflict which is "within the four corners of the majority decision."

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented above, the State respectfully prays this Honorable Court does not accept jurisdiction in this matter.